
AGENDA 

SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT APPEAL BOARD 

Monday, November 17, 2025 – 10:00 a.m.  
Council Chambers – 53109A Hwy 779, Parkland County, AB 

Virtual attendance option available via Teams 
Please email SDAB@parklandcounty.com no later than 9:00 a.m. on Monday, November 17, 2025 to 

register for attendance via Teams 

1) Call to order

2) Members Present

3) Adoption of Agenda

4) Adoption of Minutes

5) 10:00 a.m. Appointment

I. The appeal of Permitted Use with a Variance Approved Discretionary Development
Permit located at:
Legal Location:  SW-35-51-2-W5
Permit Number:  PLDPH20250765

II. Applicant: Raymond Guy
III. Appellant: Kristopher Chiasson and Mirka Salo Chiasson

6) Adjournment

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 1 of 160

mailto:SDAB@parklandcounty.com


TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

Subdivision and Development Appeal Board 
 
 

 

APPEAL OF PERMITTED USE WITH A VARIANCE APPROVED DISCRETIONARY 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT:   

PERMIT APPLICATION PLDPH20250765 

 

1. AGENDA ........................................................................................................................... PAGE 1    

2. TABLE OF CONTENTS ........................................................................................................ PAGE 2 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES .................................................................................................... PAGE 3      

4. NOTICE OF APPEAL ........................................................................................................... PAGE 6    

5. NOTICE OF DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPROVAL  ............................................................. PAGE 14   

6. HEARING NOTIFICATION ................................................................................................ PAGE 16   

7. SUBMISSIONS OF THE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ......................................................... PAGE 20 

8. SUBMISSIONS OF THE APPELLANT .................................................................................. PAGE 87 

9. SUBMISSIONS OF THE APPLICANT .............................................................................. PAGE 139 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 2 of 160



1 

 MINUTES OF THE PARKLAND COUNTY SUBDIVISION & DEVELOPMENT APPEAL BOARD (THE 
“BOARD”) MEETING HELD AT PARKLAND COUNTY CENTRE AT 10:00 A.M., March 10, 2025 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER/TERRITORIAL LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Chairperson, L. Foy called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m. and on behalf of the Board offered a territorial 
land acknowledgement. 

 
2. PRESENT 

Members: B. Bundt, L. Foy, L. Helton, C. Lamoureux, A. Tollenaar 
Clerk:  R. Coupal 
Recording Secretary: S. Harris 
Legal Counsel: G. Stewart-Palmer, Shores-Jardine LLP  

 
3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

Moved by B. Bundt that the 10:00 a.m., March 10, 2025 agenda be adopted, as presented. 
Carried 

4. ADOPTION OF MEETING MINUTES 
Board Member L. Helton moved that the January 22, 2025, Annual Organizational Meeting Minutes be 
adopted, as presented.          Carried 

 
Board Member B. Bundt moved that the January 27, 2025, 10:00 a.m., Subdivision and Development Appeal 
Board Meeting Minutes be adopted, as presented.       Carried 
 
Board Member C. Lamoureux moved that the January 27, 2025, 11:00 a.m., Subdivision and Development 
Appeal Board Meeting Minutes be adopted, as presented.      Carried 

 
5. NEW BUSINESS 

10:00 a.m. Appointment 

The appeal of permit approval located at: 
Legal Location: 2421282/1/2, NW-35-51-26-4 
Permit Number: PLDPC20230804 

 
Applicant: Rob Chomiak/GraceLife Church of Edmonton/Agent: B. Trevelyan 
Appellant #1/Laurie Thurlbeck/Agent J. Agrios 
Appellant #2/Enoch Cree Nation/Agent E. Duffy 

 
6. DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Aman Jhawer, Senior Planner, Development Planning, Parkland County 
Amy Jones, Environmental Coordinator 
Reginald Downing, Engineering Officer 

 
7. HEARING  

The Chairperson, L. Foy, asked if anyone affected by the appeal had any objection to the Board Members 
present.  There were no objections. 
 
The Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Clerk stated that on March 10, 2025, Appellant #2/Enoch Cree 
Nation/Agent: E. Duffy withdrew their Appeal. 

 
The Chairperson asked if anyone in attendance had not received or reviewed the agenda package prior to the 
hearing. There were no persons present in the meeting that came forward.  

 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 3 of 160



Subdivision and Development Appeal Board 
June 27, 2024– 10:00 a.m. Appointment  
Page 2 
 
 

2 
 

The Chairperson asked those in attendance at the meeting if anyone wished to submit materials that were not 
included in the agenda package. J. Agrios, Agent for Appellant #1 came forward to submit additional 
information.  
 
RECESS – The Chairperson adjourned the hearing at 10:18 a.m. and reconvened the hearing at 10:24 a.m. 
 
The Chairperson asked those in attendance if there were any objections to the additional documents provided  
by J. Agrios, Agent for Appellant #1. B. Trevelyan, Agent for the Applicant asked the Chairperson for a 15  
minute recess to review the materials that were provided.  
 
RECESS – The Chairperson adjourned the hearing at 10:26 a.m. and reconvened the hearing at 10:45 a.m. 
 
The Chairperson asked those in attendance if there were any objections to the additional documents provided  
by J. Agrios, agent for Appellant #1. B. Trevelyan, Agent for GraceLife Church of Edmonton and Darcy 
Paulichuk, asked the Chairperson to have the additional documents deemed inadmissible.  
 
RECESS – The Chairperson adjourned the hearing at 10:56 a.m. and reconvened the hearing at 10:58 a.m. 
 
The Chairperson asked B. Trevelyan, Agent for GraceLife Church of Edmonton if they had any further  
comments regarding the additional materials being submitted. B. Trevelyan, Agent for GraceLife Church of  
Edmonton provided additional comments. 
 
RECESS – The Chairperson adjourned the hearing at 11:02 a.m. and reconvened the hearing at 11:26 a.m. 

 
The Chairperson states that the Board will accept the additional information that was provided by J. Agrios, 
Agent for Appellant #1. 
 

8. PRESENTATIONS 
Development Authority 
The Chairperson called on the Development Authority to make their presentation. A. Jhawer for Parkland 
County’s Development Authority provided a verbal presentation and referred to materials within the agenda 
package.  
 
The Subdivision and Development Appeal Board asked questions of the Development Authority. The 
Development Authority provided responses to the Board’s questions. 
 
RECESS – The Chairperson adjourned the hearing at 11:59 a.m. and reconvened the hearing at 12:50 p.m. 
 
Appellant #1/Agent 
The Chairperson called on Appellant #1/Agent J. Agrios to make their presentation. J. Agrios, agent for 
Appellant #1 provided a verbal presentation and referred to materials within the agenda package. Mark 
Huberman, Transportation Consultant made his presentation. H. Currie, affected neighbor, made his 
presentation. 
 
The Subdivision and Development Appeal Board asked questions of J. Agrios, agent for Appellant #1 and Mark 
Huberman. J. Agrios, agent for Appellant #1 and Mark Huberman provided responses to the Board’s questions. 
 
RECESS – The Chairperson adjourned the hearing at 2:08 p.m. and reconvened the hearing at 2:21 p.m. 
 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 4 of 160



Subdivision and Development Appeal Board 
June 27, 2024– 10:00 a.m. Appointment  
Page 3 
 
 

3 
 

Applicant/Agent 
The Chairperson called on the Applicant/B. Trevelyan, Agent for GraceLife Church of Edmonton to make their 
presentation. B. Trevelyan, Agent for GraceLife Church of Edmonton provided a verbal presentation and 
referred to materials within the agenda package.  D. Paulichuk, Transportation Consultant made his 
presentation. 

 
The Subdivision and Development Appeal Board asked questions of B. Trevelyan, Agent for GraceLife Church 
of Edmonton and D. Paulichuk. B. Trevelyan, Agent for GraceLife Church of Edmonton and D. Paulichuk 
provided responses to the Board’s questions. 
 
A. Pillidge, Pastor of GraceLife Church of Edmonton made his presentation. 
 
The Subdivision and Development Appeal Board asked questions of A. Pillidge. 
 
RECESS – The Chairperson adjourned the hearing at 3:28 p.m. and reconvened the hearing at 3:58 p.m. 
 
The Subdivision and Development Appeal Board asked questions of J. Agrios, agent for Appellant #1. 
 
J. Agrios, agent for Appellant #1 responded to the Applicants/Agent B. Trevelyan’s presentation. Mark 
Huberman, Transportation Consultant responded to D. Paulichuk’s presentation.  
 
The Subdivision and Development Appeal Board asked questions of J. Agrios, agent for Appellant #1. 
 

9. CLOSING REMARKS 
The Applicant/Agent B. Trevelyan and Appellant #1/Agent J. Agrios provided closing remarks. 
 
RECESS – The Chairperson adjourned the hearing at 4:59 p.m. and reconvened the hearing at 5:05 p.m. 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

At 5:05 p.m., the Chairperson declared the hearing closed. The Board will not hear any further information 
regarding this appeal. The Chair advised that a written decision will be issued within 15 days.  
 
The Chairperson closed this March 10, 2025, Subdivision and Development Appeal Board meeting at 5:05 p.m.  
 

 
 
 

        
Chairperson 

 
 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 5 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 6 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 7 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 8 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 9 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 10 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 11 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 12 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 13 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 14 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 15 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 16 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 17 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 18 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 19 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 20 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 21 of 160



3

APPLICATION DETAILS

On August 28, 2025, a Home-Based Business Development Permit application was 
received for “Home based business for mobile business .”

Parkland County Land Use Bylaw 2025-12: 

Determined Use Class: HOME-BASED BUSINESS, MINOR

Use Type: PERMITTED Use

Use Class Definition: …Means an Accessory Use involving a business activity 
conducted by a resident within their primary Dwelling or Accessory Building. This 
activity should not alter the outward appearance or character of the main 
Dwelling, involves only a limited number of client visits, and has no impact 
outside of the Parcel. Typical Uses include mobile or off-site services, Bed and 
Breakfasts, Home-Based Child Care, or small-scale vehicle repair.

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 22 of 160



4

APPLICATION DETAILS – SUBMISSION DOCUMENTS

Application Items Included:

1. Landowner Authorization Form
2. Land Title
3. Site Plan
4. Letter of Intent
5. Building photo
6. Variance Request Letter/Letter of Intent

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 23 of 160



5

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SCOPE

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 24 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 25 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 26 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 27 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 28 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 29 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 30 of 160



12

STATUTORY POLICY ALIGNMENT AND LUB 
REGULATIONS

 MDP BYLAW 2025-22

LAND USE BYLAW 2025-12                                                                                 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 31 of 160



13

MDP BYLAW 2024-22 - POLICY ALIGNMENT

KEY POLICIES:

Development Policies to Protect Natural Functions 

 Policy 3.3.2 ESAs and High Priority Landscapes must be protected

 Policy 3.3.5 Development near wetland must be avoided

Development Policies to Manage Growth 

 Policy 3.5.1 Home-based business will be allowed County-wide where well   
suited  

PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT 

ALIGNS

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 32 of 160



14

LAND USE BYLAW 2025-12 - REGULATIONS

LUB REGULATIONS
• S2.70 District Purpose: To allow for rural residential Development and 

supportive local business Uses. This District is intended to be residential in 
nature with low-density Development or larger Parcels while allowing for 
limited commercial and agricultural Uses.

• S6.40 Variances to Regulations: The Development Authority is satisfied the 
Variance  to allow a total of 2 non-resident employees would not 
materially interfere with or affect the use, enjoyment or value of 
neighbouring properties.

• S5.100 Home-Based Business

PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT 

ALIGNS

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 33 of 160



15

APPLICATION DETAILS – TIMELINE OF EVENTS 

1. On August 28, 2025, the application was submitted.

2. On September 8, 2025, Development Planning received the 
complete application with the requested submittals.

3. The fee for the development permit was paid on September 
8, 2025 and assigned to a Planner. 

4. On September 15, 2025, the Development Authority 
requested a Variance Request Letter from the applicant,  
and the applicant paid the fee for the Variance.

5. On September 16, 2025, the Development Authority sent a 
Deemed Complete Notice to the applicant. 

6. On October 6, 2025, the Development Authority approved 
the Discretionary Development Permit.

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 34 of 160



16

DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY DECISION

• The Development Authority has approved the application for 
the following reasons:

• The proposed Home-Based Business, Minor aligns with Parkland 
County’s Statutory Plan Policies.

• The proposed development meets the Land Use Bylaw Regulations 
Sections 2.70, 5.100, 6.40 and 9.10.

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 35 of 160



17

DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY DECISION

• The Development Authority submits that the SDAB upholds 
the decision of the Development Authority. 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 36 of 160



18

Questions?

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 37 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 38 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 39 of 160



 

 
 

  The subject Lands is not situated in a Development Concept area. The Lands is 
situated in the Rural Agricultural Area and in the High Priority Landscape as 
indicated on the MDP s2.3 Development Concept Map. (Exhibit E). The 
following policy analysis refers to policies in the MDP (Exhibit D). 
 
 

Policy Proposed Development  
Section 3.3 Development Policies to 
Protect Natural Functions 

 

Policy 3.3.2 Environmentally 
Significant Areas and High Priority 
Landscapes 

a. Development must protect 
and enhance natural 
features and their functions 
in High Priority Landscapes 
and Environmentally 
Significant Areas through 
incorporation of nature-
positive operations. 

Parkland County is committed to 
preserving its natural features which 
support natural systems. The Home-
Based Business, Minor does not 
propose any building development, 
ground disturbance, or vegetation 
clearing and operates from two 
structures that have Development 
Permit approvals. The application is 
aligned with this policy as there is no 
disturbance to the natural features. 

Policy 3.3.5 Wetlands 
b. Development must avoid or 

mitigate impact to 
Moderate Value Wetlands, 
including areas necessary to 
support hydrological 
connections and recharge. 

 

A wetland of Moderate Wetland 
Valuation is identified in Parkland 
County’s wetland inventory on the 
Lands on the north-west corner in a 
treed area, and one the west side of 
the parcel. The Home-Based 
Business, Minor proposes no 
building, ground disturbance, or 
vegetation clearing. The business 
activity is setback not less than 30 m 
from each identified wetland. 

Section 3.5 Development Policies to 
Manage Growth 

 

Policy 3.5.1 
c. Home-based businesses will 

be allowed throughout the 
County where they are well-
suited to their context and 
do not significantly impact 
neighbouring properties 

Home-Based Business, Minor 
includes mobile or off-site services 
by definition, and the proposed 
Home-Based Business, Minor is well-
suited to the neighbourhood, and 
does not significantly impact 
neighbouring properties  

 
 
 

Area Structure Plan  o None 
   
   

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 40 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 41 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 42 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 43 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 44 of 160



 

• A Variance from the allowed 1 non-resident employee to 2 non-resident employees was 
requested to ensure the safe loading of materials into the truck, and was supported by the 
Development Authority because the impact of the additional non-resident employee is 
negligible. 

• The proposed development meets the requirements for Home-Based Business, Minor as 
outlined in Section 5.100 of the Land Use Bylaw, considering the Variance requested. 
 

2. Relevant Statutory Planning Documents 
• The MDP supports Home-based businesses throughout the County where they are well-suited 

to their context and do not significantly impact neighbouring properties, as outlined in Policy 
3.5.1(c). 
 

3. Adjacent Land Use 
• The Development Authority is of the opinion that the proposed development is compatible 

with surrounding adjacent Country Residential land uses 
• The Development Authority considered the proposed hours of on-site activity, limited number 

of employees, number of daily trips generated, proposed screening measures, described indoor 
storage of materials, limited number of associated vehicles, off-site/mobile nature of the 
business, and determined that the proposed development would not unduly affect the use and 
enjoyment of the adjacent residential uses.  

 
The application included all submittal items as required by the Development Authority. The storage of materials 
is within two existing structures with Development Permit approvals, so further agency circulation was deemed 
unnecessary. No concerns for the development as proposed were identified from the review. 
 
In the opinion of the Development Authority, the proposed development and associated submittal items 
sufficiently address the Specific Development Regulations specific to Home-Based Business, Minor use within 
Parkland County. 
 
Closing Statement 
 
The Development Authority submits that the SDAB upholds the decision of the Development Authority to 
approve Home-Based Business, Minor use on the Lands. 
 
 
EXHIBITS    
 
 Exhibit A: Development Permit Decision 
 Exhibit B: Location Map 

Exhibit C: Land Use Bylaw 2025-12 Excerpts 
 Exhibit D: Municipal Development Plan Bylaw 2024-22 Excerpts 
 Exhibit E: MDP s2.3 Development Concept Map 
 Exhibit F: Variance Request Letter/Letter of Intent 
 Exhibit G: Photo of two Accessory Buildings used for storage of materials 
 Exhibit H: Emails between Development Authority and appellant 
 Exhibit I:   Photo of natural berm formation from appellant’s property 
 Exhibit J:  Photo of trees along north property line of the Lands 
  
 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 45 of 160



 

   
 

Exhibit A: Development Permit Decision 
  

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 46 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 47 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 48 of 160



 

Exhibit B: Location Map 

  

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 49 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 50 of 160



 

Exhibit C: Land Use Bylaw 2025-12 Excerpts 
  

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 51 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 52 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 53 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 54 of 160



Parkland County  

Land Use Bylaw \ 19 

 

5. Additional Regulations for Specific Uses 

Commercial Uses 

5.1. Commercial Uses must incorporate Screening, to the satisfaction of the Development Authority, where:  

5.1.1. Impacts extend beyond the boundary of the Parcel; and 

5.1.2. Any outdoor storage activities are located on-site. 

5.2. Commercial Uses should be prioritized on Corner Parcels. 

5.3. Short-Term Accommodation Uses must be an Accessory Use to a Principal Residential Use. 

Public Service and Infrastructure Uses 

5.4. Public Service and Infrastructure Uses should be prioritized on Corner Parcels. 

6. General Regulations 

Special Information Requirements 

6.1. Development within 30.0 m (98.4 ft.) of the shoreline of a Water Body may require the submission of 
appropriate reports, as determined by the Development Authority to assess: 

6.1.1. Impacts to local flora and fauna; 

6.1.2. Management of sediment run-off; 

6.1.3. Mitigation of stormwater run-off; and 

6.1.4. Impacts to Water Body health. 

  

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 55 of 160



Parkland County  

Land Use Bylaw \ 100 

5.100. Home-Based Business  
1. General Development Regulations 

1.1. Home-Based Businesses must: 

1.1.1. Be located in the Principal Building or Accessory Building; 

1.1.2. Not alter the external appearance and residential character of land or Buildings; 

1.1.3. Not generate excessive or unacceptable increases in traffic within the neighbourhood or 
immediate area; 

1.1.4. Not generate Nuisances, including but not limited to, noise, smoke, steam, odour, dust, fumes, 
exhaust, vibration, heat, glare, or refuse matter that is considered offensive or excessive by the 
Development Authority; 

1.1.5. Always maintain the privacy of Adjacent Dwellings;  

1.1.6. Not impact Adjacent Dwellings by excessive lighting, late calling of clients, unreasonable 
number of clients, traffic congestion, or excessive on-street or off-street parking; and 

1.1.7. Provide adequate parking for all on-site employees. 

1.2. The display or placement of Signs on the premises of a Home-Based Business must be in accordance 
with Section 4.100. 

2. Home-Based Business, Home Office 

2.1. Only the residents of the Parcel may work on-site in the business. 

2.2. Home-Based Business, Home Office must not: 

2.2.1. Include any outside storage of goods, materials, commodities or finished products; and 

2.2.2. Include any on-site attendance of clients or customers. 

3. Home-Based Business, Minor 

3.1. Home-Based Business, Minor may include: 

3.1.1. One additional employee, in addition to the residents of the Parcel, who may work on-site in 
the business;  

3.1.2. On-site client attendance, where one client visit may be allowed at one time, and one on-site 
Parking Stall must be available as per the specifications of Section 4.50; and 

3.1.3. Parking of up to two commercial vehicles with up to two accessory trailers, such as a dual axle 
gravel truck with pup, a trailer carrying a small backhoe, bobcat, or similar, tractor unit only (no 
trailer), or a three-ton truck or similar vehicle, at the discretion of the Development Authority. 

3.2. Outdoor Storage of goods, materials, commodities, or finished products must not be permitted. 

4. Home-Based Business, Major 

4.1. Home-Based Business, Major may include: 

4.1.1. Up to 4 additional employees, in addition to the residents of the Parcel, who may work on-site 
in the business. 

4.2. At the discretion of the Development Authority, the following may be permitted: 

4.2.1. Outdoor Storage of goods, materials, commodities or finished products; and 

4.2.2. Parking of any commercial or off-site employee vehicles, including the number and location of 
Parking Stalls. 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 56 of 160



Parkland County  

Land Use Bylaw \ 125 

6.40. Variances to Regulations 
1. Application of Variances 

1.1. Before the Development Authority considers a Variance, the Applicant must submit, in writing, the 
following information: 

1.1.1. The reason for the Variance request; and 

1.1.2. Any other justification as requested by the Development Authority as per Subsection 2. 

2. Granting a Variance 

2.1. To grant a Variance, the Development Authority must be satisfied that the proposed Development: 

2.1.1. Would not unduly interfere with the amenities of the neighbourhood; or 

2.1.2. Would not materially interfere with or affect the use, enjoyment, or value of neighbouring 
properties; and 

2.1.3. Conforms with the Use prescribed for that Land or Building under this Bylaw. 

2.2. The Development Authority may also request that the Applicant provide additional information as 
directed by the Development Authority to ensure the proposed Development: 

2.2.1. Complies with the Municipal Development Plan and any other applicable Statutory Plan; 

2.2.2. Conforms to the purpose of the district or Overlay; and 

2.2.3. Is consistent with sound land use planning principles. 

2.3. When deciding on a request for a Variance, the Development Authority may consider the conditions of 
the land where the Development is sited that would make it unreasonable for the Development to 
comply with this Bylaw. This may include but is not limited to: 

2.3.1. Slope; 

2.3.2. Grade;  

2.3.3. Shape of the Parcel; or 

2.3.4. Natural Features.  

Development Permit Requirements 

2.4. Where a Variance is granted, the Development Authority must specify the nature of the approved 
Variance in the Development Permit Approval. 

3. Exemptions to Variances 

3.1. Variances must not be considered for the following: 

3.1.1. Purpose of the district; 

3.1.2. Definitions defined in this Bylaw; or 

3.1.3. Uses not listed as Permitted or Discretionary in a land use district. 

  

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 57 of 160



 

Exhibit D: Municipal Development Plan Bylaw 2024-22 
Excerpts 

  

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 58 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 59 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 60 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 61 of 160



 

Exhibit E: MDP s2.3 Development Concept Map 
  

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 62 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 63 of 160



 

Exhibit F: Variance Request Letter/Letter of Intent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 64 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 65 of 160



o They arrive together in the 1-ton diesel truck after 08:00 AM, retrieve their daily 
work orders, load necessary materials, and typically depart within 10–15 minutes, 
usually by 08:30–09:00 AM. 

o The presence of two workers is essential for safely handling and transporting 
heavy materials, both onsite and in the community. 

Hours of Operation: 

• Our official hours are 08:00 to 16:00, with peak onsite activity limited to 08:30–09:00 
AM. 

Community Consideration: 

• We have taken steps to reduce impact on the neighborhood: 
o Replaced one diesel truck with a quieter gas-powered vehicle. 
o Maintained a buffer of approximately 50 yards from neighbors, including a long 

tree line separating properties. 
•  

o Limited onsite time and employee traffic. 

 

We respectfully request this variance to continue operating at our current location under the 
above conditions. We are committed to maintaining the quiet and residential character of the 
neighborhood while safely and responsibly running our small business. 

Please let us know if any additional documentation or signatures are required to support this 
request. We are more than willing to attend a hearing or inspection if needed. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Sincerely, 
Raymond Guy  
Owner, Guys Overhead Door Services Ltd. 

 
ray.bon@telus.net 

 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 66 of 160



 

Exhibit G: Photo of two Accessory Buildings used 
for storage of materials 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 67 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 68 of 160



 

Exhibit H: Emails between Development Authority and 
appellant 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 69 of 160



From: Stephanie Camilleri
To:
Bcc: Brayden Jones; Randy Shermack; Braden Slemko
Subject: Concern follow up
Date: Wednesday, October 1, 2025 4:18:00 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

Hi Kris,

I am following up on an inquiry and concerns you have about activity on the parcel
adjacent to yours. I can confirm that a Development Permit application has been
submitted and is under review.

You may find our PLANit Portal a useful tool to stay informed on what developments are
happening in your neighbourhood. While the information available to the public is
limited, you will be able to see that a Home Based Business, Minor has been applied for,
and the status is Complete Application.

Should a Development Permit be for a Discretionary Use, or should it require a variance,
adjacent landowners will be notified and have the chance to appeal a decision. We
endeavor to provide notice to adjacent landowners, despite the postal strike. Please
check Development Permit Approvals often for notice of Development Permit approvals.

If you have any concerns or comments, please feel free to forward them to me. We
appreciate public input and would carefully consider your comments.

Sincerely,

Stephanie Camilleri | Development Officer | Parkland County | 53109A HWY 779, Parkland County, Alberta T7Z
1R1 
Office: 780-968-8888 ext. 8436| stephanie.camilleri@parklandcounty.com | www.parklandcounty.com

 One Parkland: Powerfully Connected.

This communication is intended for use of the recipient to whom it is addressed and may contain confidential, personal and/or privileged
information. Please contact me immediately if you are not the intended recipient of the communication and do not copy, distribute, or
take action relying upon it. Any communication received in error, or subsequent reply, should be deleted or destroyed.

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 70 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 71 of 160



Based Business – Minor. The intensity of operations is clearly commercial in nature and
incompatible with the residential character of our neighbourhood.

Previous Efforts to Resolve:

Over the past two years, we have corresponded and met multiple times with County
representatives, including Shawn O’Hanlon (prior to his resignation) and Robert Kluz, to
provide extensive evidence of ongoing violations. Despite these efforts, the response we
have consistently received is that “the file is being closed.”

It is extremely concerning that, rather than enforcing existing bylaws and addressing
repeated non-compliance, the County has instead chosen to issue new or expanded permits
for this business.

Precedent and Request for Action:

This situation closely mirrors the previous issue with the “Total Offroad” business in our
area — a matter that was only resolved after Councillor Rob Wiedeman became involved.
I have again contacted Councillor Wiedeman regarding this ongoing problem and sincerely
hope the County will now take this issue seriously.

I am prepared to file a formal appeal of this development permit. However, it is difficult to
understand how paying a $200 appeal fee would lead to a different outcome, given that the
concerns being raised are the same ones the County has been aware of for years.

Finally, the conditions attached to the permit clearly state that “Failure to comply with the
conditions of this permit may result in the permit being cancelled or revoked.” The
previous permit holder demonstrably failed to comply — yet the County’s response appears
to be to issue another permit rather than enforce existing conditions. I respectfully ask for
clarification on how this approach aligns with County policy and the principles of fair and
consistent bylaw enforcement.

Mirka Salo/Chiasson & Kris Chiasson

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 72 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 73 of 160



From:
To: Stephanie Camilleri
Cc: Braden Slemko
Subject: Re: Concerns Regarding Approved Development Permit – Home-Based Business Adjacent to Our Property
Date: Wednesday, October 15, 2025 5:55:26 PM

You don't often get email from mirkachiasson@gmail.com. Learn why this is important

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Parkland County. Do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognize this sender and know the contents are safe.

Hello,

Thank you for getting back to me.

I’ve now seen the email. 

”If you have any concerns or comments, please feel free to forward them to me. We
appreciate public input and would carefully consider your comments.”

Unfortunately I wasn’t able to get back to you in those 5 days before their
application was approved by you on Monday. That being said, as far as I know you
were forwarder all of our concerns, comments and input from Brayden. These inputs
have them clearly violating their permits before and currently. As I stated before, the
county has photo and video material of them breaking their permit constantly. I don’t
understand how the fact that they have already broken their permits for years has
no value to them being approved for even a larger business permit. 

”Parkland County is committed to serving residents equitably and responsibly. If you
choose not to appeal the decision, we would still encourage you to contact us in the future if
you have specific concerns about the home-based business, and feel negatively impacted.
We would follow up on your concerns.”

I have been contacting the county for 5 years now with the issues and haven’t had one
person who would actually listen to us as a resident. I don’t understand how it would be any
different would we appeal or contact you in the future. 

I’ve tried my best to be patient with this issue but when it’s something that literally creates
issues every single day to our neigbourhood for 5 years, nobody seems to listen our
concerns or take us seriously and now they are given even a bigger business permit that
truly blows my mind.

On Wed, Oct 15, 2025 at 17:09 Stephanie Camilleri
<stephanie.camilleri@parklandcounty.com> wrote:

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 74 of 160



 

Exhibit I: Photo of natural berm formation from appellant’s 
property 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 75 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 76 of 160



 

Exhibit I: Photo of trees along north property line of the Lands 

 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 77 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 78 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 79 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 80 of 160



Subject: Letter of Intent for Home-Based Business Permit Application  

Permit # PLDPH20250765 

Subject Property -W5-2-51-35-SW 

I am writing to formally request a development permit for the operation of my business, Guys 
Overhead Doors Service LTD, from my residential property located at  
Parkland County Alberta. 

 
Guys Overhead Doors provides specialized services in the installation and repair of garage 
overhead doors. The nature of the business involves both on-site work at customer locations and 
minimal administrative tasks conducted from home. Operations include the storage of overhead 
doors and parts in two buildings on-site, as well as the transportation of these materials to job 
sites using service trucks and a trailer. 

 
The business operates on weekdays, Monday through Friday, from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM. There 
is no direct public traffic to and from the property, as customers receive services at their 
respective locations. The only regular activities on-site involve the unloading of parts for storage 
and the loading of materials onto the service trucks for transport. Currently, I employ two staff 
members (a lead hand and a helper), both of whom arrive together and leave together for work. 

 
We are committed to ensuring that all business activities comply with the relevant zoning laws 
and residential business regulations. Our operations are low-impact, and we anticipate no 
disruption to the neighborhood. All deliveries and vehicle movements are restricted to business 
hours, and no customer appointments are held on-site. 

 
I am requesting the approval of a home-based business permit to legally operate Guys Overhead 
Doors from my residence. I am happy to provide any additional information or documentation 
required for processing my application. 

Please let me know if there are any specific forms, fees, or inspections that need to be completed 
as part of the application process. I am happy to schedule a meeting or site visit to further discuss 
the nature of the business and ensure full compliance with all local guidelines. 

Thank you for considering my application. I look forward to your favorable response. If you 
require any further details or clarification, please feel free to contact me at 780-963-0477 or via 
email at ray.bon@telus.net. 

 

Submittal 1.3

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 81 of 160



Submittal 1.4

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 82 of 160



LAND TITLE CERTIFICATE

S
LINC TITLE NUMBERSHORT LEGAL

0012 725 041 872 308 5707921342;1;5A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
PLAN 7921342

BLOCK 1

LOT 5A

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

AREA: 2.61 HECTARES (6.45 ACRES) MORE OR LESS

ESTATE: FEE SIMPLE

ATS REFERENCE: 5;2;51;35;SW

MUNICIPALITY: PARKLAND COUNTY

CONSIDERATIONDOCUMENT TYPE VALUE
REGISTERED OWNER(S)

872 308 570 NIL

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------

REGISTRATION DATE(DMY)

21/12/1987

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------

OWNERS

RAYMOND GUY

AND

BONNY GUY

BOTH OF:

PARKLAND COUNTY

ALBERTA T7Y 2H9

AS JOINT TENANTS

(DATA UPDATED BY: CHANGE OF ADDRESS 122014169)

(DATA UPDATED BY: CHANGE OF ADDRESS 172040182)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------

DATE (D/M/Y) PARTICULARS

ENCUMBRANCES, LIENS & INTERESTS

REGISTRATION

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------
NUMBER

UTILITY RIGHT OF WAY16/08/1978782 183 844
GRANTEE - WEST PARKLAND GAS CO-OP LTD.

26/02/2016162 060 842 MORTGAGE

( CONTINUED )

Submittal 1.5

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 83 of 160



-----------------------------------------------------------------------------

DATE (D/M/Y) PARTICULARS

ENCUMBRANCES, LIENS & INTERESTS

REGISTRATION

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------
NUMBER

2PAGE
# 872 308 570

MORTGAGEE - 

002TOTAL INSTRUMENTS:

*END OF CERTIFICATE*

ORDER NUMBER:

CUSTOMER FILE NUMBER:

54975360

20250765

THE REGISTRAR OF TITLES CERTIFIES THIS TO BE AN 

ACCURATE REPRODUCTION OF THE CERTIFICATE OF 

TITLE REPRESENTED HEREIN THIS 16 DAY OF 

SEPTEMBER, 2025 AT 11:20 A.M.

THIS ELECTRONICALLY TRANSMITTED LAND TITLES PRODUCT IS INTENDED 

FOR THE SOLE USE OF THE ORIGINAL PURCHASER, AND NONE OTHER, 

SUBJECT TO WHAT IS SET OUT IN THE PARAGRAPH BELOW.

THE ABOVE PROVISIONS DO NOT PROHIBIT THE ORIGINAL PURCHASER FROM

INCLUDING THIS UNMODIFIED PRODUCT IN ANY REPORT, OPINION, 

APPRAISAL OR OTHER ADVICE PREPARED BY THE ORIGINAL PURCHASER AS 

PART OF THE ORIGINAL PURCHASER APPLYING PROFESSIONAL, CONSULTING 

OR TECHNICAL EXPERTISE FOR THE BENEFIT OF CLIENT(S).

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 84 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 85 of 160



o They arrive together in the 1-ton diesel truck after 08:00 AM, retrieve their daily 
work orders, load necessary materials, and typically depart within 10–15 minutes, 
usually by 08:30–09:00 AM. 

o The presence of two workers is essential for safely handling and transporting 
heavy materials, both onsite and in the community. 

Hours of Operation: 

• Our official hours are 08:00 to 16:00, with peak onsite activity limited to 08:30–09:00 
AM. 

Community Consideration: 

• We have taken steps to reduce impact on the neighborhood: 
o Replaced one diesel truck with a quieter gas-powered vehicle. 
o Maintained a buffer of approximately 50 yards from neighbors, including a long 

tree line separating properties. 
•  

o Limited onsite time and employee traffic. 

 

We respectfully request this variance to continue operating at our current location under the 
above conditions. We are committed to maintaining the quiet and residential character of the 
neighborhood while safely and responsibly running our small business. 

Please let us know if any additional documentation or signatures are required to support this 
request. We are more than willing to attend a hearing or inspection if needed. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Sincerely, 
Raymond Guy  
Owner, Guys Overhead Door Services Ltd. 

 
ray.bon@telus.net 

 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 86 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 87 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 88 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 89 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 90 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 91 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 92 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 93 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 94 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 95 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 96 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 97 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 98 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 99 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 100 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 101 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 102 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 103 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 104 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 105 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 106 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 107 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 108 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 109 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 110 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 111 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 112 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 113 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 114 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 115 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 116 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 117 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 118 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 119 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 120 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 121 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 122 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 123 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 124 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 125 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 126 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 127 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 128 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 129 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 130 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 131 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 132 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 133 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 134 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 135 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 136 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 137 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 138 of 160



Re: Ojection to Appeal Development Permit No. PLDPH20250765 

Raymond Guy 
Guys Overhead Door Services Ltd. 

 
Parkland County, AB T7Y 2H9 

 
ray.bon@telus.net 

Date: November 7, 2025 

To: 
Parkland County Subdivision and Development Appeal Board 
53109A Hwy 779 Parkland County, AB Canada T7Z 1R1 

 I am writing to formally appeal the Complaints that have been raised by my neighbors, 
Kristopher Chiasson and Mirka Salo Chaisson, who live near my property at  Range 
Road 22 in our subdivision. 

I have been a resident in this community for 37 years. I have had a Development Permit since 
2004 and have always strived to be a considerate neighbor. I was advised by the enforcement 
division to upgrade to the current permit for the home base business. Over the years, I have made 
significant efforts to address any noise concerns, including replacing a diesel truck with a gas-
powered truck, believing this would mitigate the issue. Despite these changes, I have continued 
to receive complaints, with both the volume and frequency of such complaints increasing over 
the past four years. 

It is important to note that, prior to this period, I had no significant issues with my neighbor 
regarding noise or other disruptions. However, in recent years—coinciding with my neighbor's 
remarriage—there has been a noticeable escalation in complaints, and increasingly 
confrontational behavior directed towards myself and my business. I was told by Mirka Chaisson 
I was not allowed a to Have a Business in our Subdivision and I Mentioned that I had a 
Development Permit to do so. She told me that was not Allowed. 

I fully understand that every resident has the right to peace and quiet in their home, and I have 
made every effort to respect that right. However, I am deeply concerned that the situation has 
evolved into harassment and unreasonable demands, which are now negatively affecting both my 
personal and professional life, as well as my ability to operate my business in good faith. 

Given the long-standing nature of this issue and the substantial efforts I have made to resolve it, I 
kindly request that the Development Appeal Board review the circumstances of this dispute and 
provide guidance or intervention to help resolve this matter in a fair and balanced manner. While 
I am committed to maintaining a peaceful and cooperative environment within our community, it 
is important that this situation be recognized for what it has become—an escalation that goes 
beyond typical neighborly disputes. 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 139 of 160



Trying to take our livelihood away is far from neighborly. During this trying economic time 
Small Family Businesses should be supported especially those of us who are highly respected & 
provide excellent services to all of Parkland County and residents. 

 I would prefer to resolve this amicably and without further disruption. However, I believe it is 
crucial that the ongoing problems be addressed, as they are interfering with my ability to live 
peacefully and operate my business. 

I Have Attached Files that Show 

-  Development Permit Since 2004 

- My Shop that was built since 1987 

- Pictures of Shop, my other storage Building and my Driveway and the Appellant’s house. 

- Pictures of material stored  

- Petition Support Letters from Neighbour’s in the Subdivision 

Thank you for taking the time to review my appeal. I greatly appreciate your consideration, and I 
look forward to your guidance on how best to proceed. 

Sincerely, 
Raymond Guy 
Owner, Guys Overhead Door Services Ltd. 

 
ray.bon@telus.net 

 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 140 of 160



Guys Overhead Doors Ltd. 
 

Parkland County, AB 
November 7, 2025 

To: Parkland County Appeal Board 
Re: Response to Concerns Regarding Home-Based Business – Guys Overhead Doors Ltd. 

We are writing in response to the ongoing concerns submitted by Mirka and Kris Chaisson 
regarding our home-based business, Guys Overhead Doors Ltd., located at  
Parkland County. We would like to provide factual clarification on each point raised. 

 

1. Incompatibility with Residential Zoning 

The complaint suggests our operations are commercial in scale. This is not accurate. 
Our business owns two trucks: 

• A 2017 Dodge Diesel, which does not reside on our property. 
• A 2018 GMC Sierra Gas, purchased in December 2023, which does reside on our 

property. 

A third truck (2014 Dodge Diesel) that was previously located here has not been used for 
business purposes since 2023 and has since been sold to our son for personal use. 

There is no outdoor storage of business materials on the property. All materials are securely 
stored indoors, in accordance with the County’s requirements for home-based businesses. 

 

2. Excessive Commercial Vehicle Traffic and Noise 

We do not own or operate forklifts. We own one skid steer, primarily for personal use, 
including snow removal and firewood handling. It is occasionally used to move heavy materials 
from our enclosed storage to the truck to prevent lifting injuries. 

Traffic to and from our property is minimal: 

• The diesel truck typically arrives between 8:00–8:15 a.m. and leaves by 9:00 a.m. 
• On rare occasions, it may return briefly in the afternoon (around 2:30–3:00 p.m.). 
• The gas truck, when in use, leaves around 9:00 a.m. and may return between 1:00–3:00 

p.m., though it often remains off-site for the day. 

This limited activity does not generate significant noise or traffic within the subdivision. 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 141 of 160



 

3. Extended Diesel Idling and Environmental Nuisance 

Diesel trucks do not idle during the summer months, as this is not beneficial for the vehicle. In 
winter, idling may occur for approximately 30 minutes in the morning to allow for loading and 
to ensure safe vehicle operation in cold temperatures. Once loaded, the vehicle departs for the 
day and does not remain idling on the property. 

 

4. Outdoor Storage and Visible Commercial Operations 

There are no business-related materials stored outdoors. Everything, including our skid steer 
and manlift, is stored within enclosed buildings. Our property remains consistent with the 
residential appearance and standards of the neighborhood. 

 

5. Repeated Non-Compliance with County Direction 

Guys Overhead Doors Ltd. is a family-operated business owned by Ray and Bonny Guy, 
employing only two additional workers—our son and his partner. They arrive no earlier than 
8:00 a.m., in compliance with the County’s bylaws and approved operating schedule. 

 

6. History of Violations and Enforcement 

We have no record of outstanding violations. Our business operates fully in compliance with 
Parkland County’s home-based business regulations and maintains open communication with 
County staff as required. 

 

7. Cumulative Impact on Neighborhood 

We respectfully disagree with the suggestion that our business negatively affects neighborhood 
enjoyment or safety. Attached are letters of support from our neighbors, confirming that our 
operations do not disturb the community or disrupt property enjoyment. 

Our company is not expanding. In fact, Ray is gradually transitioning to a slower-paced work 
schedule. There has been no increase in the number of vehicles or employees. 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 142 of 160



Comparatively, regular residential traffic, delivery services (such as Amazon), Garbage trucks, 
and school buses generate far more traffic than our business operations. Diesel emissions from 
our vehicle are minimal and comparable to normal residential vehicle use in the area. 

 

Conclusion 

Guys Overhead Doors Ltd. remains committed to being a respectful, compliant, and responsible 
member of the Parkland County community. We take all concerns seriously and strive to ensure 
our operations continue to align with County bylaws and the residential nature of our 
neighborhood. 

We appreciate the County’s continued communication and oversight and are happy to discuss 
any further clarifications if needed. 

Sincerely, 
Ray and Bonny Guy 
Owners, Guys Overhead Doors Ltd. 
[Contact Information] 

 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 143 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 144 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 145 of 160



Raymond Guy  
Guys Overhead Door Services Ltd. 

 
Parkland County, AB T7Y 2H9 

 
ray.bon@telus.net 

Date: September 12.2025 

To: 
Stephanie Camilleri 

Subject: Request for a Variance of a non-residence employee 

Dear Stephanie Camilleri 

I am writing on behalf of Guys Overhead Door Services Ltd. to formally request a variance to 
continue operating our business at  Parkland County AB with specific conditions 
related to vehicle use, onsite material storage, and employee access. 

Business Operations Overview: 

Guys Overhead Door Services Ltd. is a small, family-operated business specializing in the 
installation and repair of overhead doors. We operate with a small crew and make every effort to 
minimize disruption to the surrounding community. 

Vehicles Onsite: 

• We own and operate two commercial trucks: 
o A ½-ton gas truck that is permanently parked onsite. 
o A 1-ton diesel truck that arrives in the morning to load parts for the Days work 

and, on rare occasions, may return in the afternoon for drop-offs. 
• Additionally, we own for the business: 

o One 30’ flatbed trailer. 
o One man lift trailer, which is stored onsite unless in use at a job site. 

Storage Facilities: 

• All materials and tools are stored indoors within a: 
o 32’x 40’ shop, and a 
o 26’x 45’ C-can (storage container) building. 

Employees: 

• The business has two non-residence employees: my son and his partner/girlfriend. 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 146 of 160



o They arrive together in the 1-ton diesel truck after 08:00 AM, retrieve their daily 
work orders, load necessary materials, and typically depart within 10–15 minutes, 
usually by 08:30–09:00 AM. 

o The presence of two workers is essential for safely handling and transporting 
heavy materials, both onsite and in the community. 

Hours of Operation: 

• Our official hours are 08:00 to 16:00, with peak onsite activity limited to 08:30–09:00 
AM. 

Community Consideration: 

• We have taken steps to reduce impact on the neighborhood: 
o Replaced one diesel truck with a quieter gas-powered vehicle. 
o Maintained a buffer of approximately 50 yards from neighbors, including a long 

tree line separating properties. 
•  

o Limited onsite time and employee traffic. 

 

We respectfully request this variance to continue operating at our current location under the 
above conditions. We are committed to maintaining the quiet and residential character of the 
neighborhood while safely and responsibly running our small business. 

Please let us know if any additional documentation or signatures are required to support this 
request. We are more than willing to attend a hearing or inspection if needed. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Sincerely, 
Raymond Guy  
Owner, Guys Overhead Door Services Ltd. 

 
ray.bon@telus.net 

 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 147 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 148 of 160



 

My Driveway and Kris & Mirka Chassion Home.  

 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 149 of 160



 

Garage Doors stored in my Shop.  

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 150 of 160



 

Garage doors stored in my Shop.  

 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 151 of 160



 

Photo of Loading Materials Outside the Shop.  

 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 152 of 160



 

Shop and Storage Buildings.  

 

 

SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 153 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 154 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 155 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 156 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 157 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 158 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 159 of 160



SDAB Hearing - November 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. - PLDPH20250765 Page 160 of 160


	Agenda Cover
	Table of Contents
	Adoption of Minutes
	Carried

	Notice of Appeal
	Notice of Appeal

	Development Permit - Discretionary PLDPH20250765 original
	Hearing Letter - Raymond Guy
	Hearing Letter - Kristopher Chiasson
	Development Authority Submissions - Redacted
	Appellants Submissions - Redacted
	Applicants Submissions Redacted



